
Our Mission: 
 
Pathway Homes  
embodies the spirit  
of recovery: embracing an  
attitude of hope,  
self-determination  
and partnering with each 
individual on their  
personal journey toward  
achieving self-fulfillment  
and realizing their dreams. 
 

We fulfill our mission by  
making available to  
individuals with mental  
illness and co-occurring  
disabilities a variety of  
non-time-limited housing and 
services to enable them to realize 
their individual potential. 

For the sake of what? 

 

Does this move us in the 

direction of our mission? 
 

Is this the best use of 

resources? 
 

Is this the direction  

we said we want to go? 

Board of Directors 

Dan Gray, Chairman 

Patrick Chaing, Vice-Chair 

Jon-Michael Rosch, Secretary 

Tom Rowe, Treasurer 

Dara L. Aldridge 

Maiko Ashby 

Emily Chiang 

Jennifer Judelsohn 

Angie Lathrop 

Jennifer McGarey 

James Ross 

Sue Zywokarte 

PATHWAY HOMES, INC. 
 

Board of Directors 
Monday, January 8, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 
10201 Fairfax Blvd., Ste. 200 

Fairfax, VA 22030-2209 
 

 

  
 6:30 Social Half-hour 
 
 7:00 Call to Order 
 
 7:05 Presentation – Sylisa Lambert-Woodard, President & CEO 
   
 7:10 Approval of Minutes of October 2, 2017* 
    
 7:12 CEO’s Report – Dr. Sylisa Lambert-Woodard 
          
 7:13 Treasurer’s Report - Brenda Brennan 
                                       
 7:15 Chairperson’s Report and Comments 
 
 7:17 Committee Reports 
  1.  Philanthropy Committee—Jennifer Judelsohn 
  2.  Board Development—Patrick Chaing 
      
 7:24 Old Business 
      
 7:25 New Business  
  1. Help the Homeless Motion: ““Having met all the obligations  
   and costs to mount the 2017 Help the Homeless Walk  
   that the Board moves to designate the 2017 Help the  
   Homeless net proceeds to unrestricted funding.”   
  2. Vision Board Exercise—Jennifer Judelsohn 
  
 8:20  Announcements. 
   
 8:25 Adjournment 
    
 

  * Materials Enclosed in Packet 

 

 



ADDENDUM	TO	BOARD	AGENDA	
	

January	8,	2018	
	

Pathway	Homes	continues	the	course	with	our	strategic	plan.	This	quarter	we	have	moved	
into	Loudoun	county	for	the	first	time,	and	continued	our	goal	to	develop	a	greater	
statewide	presence!	Pathways	remains	committed	to	providing	quality	services	within	the	
Northern	VA	region,	and	continues	to	solicit	and	survey	feedback	to	adequately	monitor	
perception	and	morale.	Continued	risk	assessment	and	financial	solvency	remain	key	areas	
to	monitor	as	we	continue	this	growth	and	rebuilding	phase.	A	primary	focus	will	remain	
on	the	continued	diversification	of	funding	that	will	be	needed	to	realize	our	mission.		We	
will	be	making	a	specific	effort	to	utilize	the	boards	expertise	in	ensuring	our	financial	
solvency	for	the	future.	I	look	forward	to	seeing	you,	and	answering	any	questions	at	our	
upcoming	meeting!	
		
Board	Matters:	

	
 The	Philanthropy	Committee	Report‐	Jennifer	Judelsohn,	Treasurer’s	Report‐	

Brenda	Brennan,	and	Board	Development	report‐	Patrick	Chaing	have	been	
provided	for	your	review.	Please	review	these	reports	before	the	meeting;	any	
questions	or	clarifications	will	be	addressed	during	the	meeting.	

	
 NEW	AWARD!‐	Pathway	Homes	has	been	awarded	its	first	grant	in	Loudoun	County!	

Pathways	will	provide	Mental	Health	Skill	Building	Services	(MHSS)	to	individuals	
served	by	the	Department	of	Mental	Health	Substance	Abuse	and	Developmental	
Services.		Loudoun	county	selected	only	two	agencies	from	a	competitive	bid	
process	to	provide	these	services.	This	program	will	effectively	begin	3/2018,	and	is	
anticipated	to	serve	between	30‐70	consumers.		
	

 NEW	AWARD!‐	Pathway	Homes’	Board	of	Directors	endorsed	submission	of	the	FY	
2019	Community	Development	Block	Grant	(CDBG)	application	for	Pathway	Homes	
Prince	William	Recovery	in	the	amount	of	$225,000.	This	project	will	fund	two	(2)	1‐
bedroom	units	or	one	townhome.	Pathways	was	notified	in	December	2017	that	it	
will	be	awarded	$185,000	to	fund	this	project	in	FY19.	Under	the	CDBG	Competitive	
Guidelines,	one	organization	can	receive	no	more	the	$225,000	as	a	combined	total	
of	application	that	rank	high	enough	for	funding.	We	were	also	awarded	our	second	
submission.		
	

 NEW	AWARD!	‐	Pathway	Homes’	Board	of	Directors	endorsed	a	second	submission	
of	the	FY	2019	Community	Development	Block	Grant	(CDBG)	application	for	
Pathway	Homes	Care	Coordination	in	the	amount	of	$40,000.	This	award	is	targeted	
to	hire	staff	to	provide	needed	case	management	services	to	those	with	serious	
mental	illness	who	are	underserved	and/or	unstably	housed.		
	



 NEW	AWARD!	Pathway	Homes	was	awarded	$25,000	from	the	Northern	Virginia	
Health	Foundation	for	the	development	of	a	pilot	supportive	services	
package/waiver.	Pathways	will	work	with	a	consultant,	Managed	Care	
Organizations	(MCO’s),	Housing	Authorities	and	CSBs	in	the	development	of	this	
design.	Product	to	be	completed	by	12/18.	
	

 New	project	formally	awarded‐	Pathway	Homes	formally	received	$500,000	from	
VA	Department	of	Housing	and	Community	Development	(VADHCD)	to	purchase	4,	
1‐bedroom	condos	at	(1%)	interest	for	our	new	2017	Pathway	Homes	Permanent	
Supportive	Housing	First	Program.	This	project	will	provide	permanent,	non‐time	
limited	housing	and	supportive	service	for	4	chronically	homeless	and/or	formerly	
homeless	adults	with	serious	mental	illnesses	and/or	substance	abuse	issues.	Two	
units	have	been	purchased	and	2	are	currently	under	contract.	
	

 New	project	formally	awarded‐The	VA	Department	of	Behavioral	Health	and	
Developmental	Services	(DBHDS)	submitted	a	request	for	carry	over	from	FY15‐16	
funds	from	the	Substance	Abuse	and	Mental	Health	Services	Administration	
(SAMHSA’s)	Cooperative	Agreements	to	Benefit	Homeless	Individual	(CABHI)	
programs	that	help	people	with	behavioral	health	issues	obtain	housing	and	
supportive	services.	CABHI	funds	can	be	used	for	a	broad	range	of	positions	and	
purposes.	Pathway	Homes	was	awarded	$101,422	through	2/28/18	to	provide	
housing	and	services	to	15	new	consumers	through	this	grant.	All	positions	have	
been	hired	for	this	project,	and	are	currently	being	served.		
	

 Due	to	the	loss	of	Pathways’	sole	source	contract	with	Fairfax	County,	our	Calamo	
property	is	being	renovated	and	anticipated	to	list	for	sale	within	the	next	30	days.		
	

 On	9/20/17	Pathways	was	verbally	notified	that	the	County	is	committed	to	
continue	its	support	in	FY19	in	the	amount	of	$267,169	administrative	cost	for	the	
CoC	projects.	This	contract	is	currently	being	renegotiated	to	add	one	32‐hour	
Manager	position,	and	a	20‐hour	peer	position	to	ensure	adequate	operations	of	this	
contract	totaling	an	additional	$132,048.		
	

 Expansion‐	Pathways	Homes’	first	regional	Department	of	Behavioral	Health	and	
Developmental	Services	(DBHDS)	award	to	serve	35	individuals	over	two	years	in	
Fairfax	County,	Prince	William,	and	Alexandria	City	is	half	way	through	its	second	
year	of	operation!	The	contract	award	for	$1,407,576	(2‐year	period),	resulted	in	an	
award	of:	18	beds‐	Fairfax,	10	beds‐	Prince	William,	and	10	beds‐	Alexandria	(2	by	
expansion),	bringing	the	total	served	in	the	second	year	to	37.	Due	to	the	success	of	
this	project	DBHDS	increased	our	budget	25%	(an	additional	$177,000)	to	serve	10	
additional	individuals	in	Prince	William	County.	Pathways	exceeded	our	time	frame	
to	fill	these	beds	by	bringing	all	47	DBHDS‐funded	beds	into	our	housing	inventory	
by	12/20/17!	
	



 Renewal‐	Pathway	Homes	is	awaiting	the	HUD	announcement	of	twelve	(12)	HUD	
Homeless	Assistance	renewal	grant	awards	totaling	$5,181,468.		These	grants	fund	
our	Supportive	Housing	Program	and	Shelter	Plus	Care	(now	called	Leasing	and	
Rental	Assistance)	projects	serving	306	individuals.	The	total	amount	of	HUD	
assistance	that	the	Fairfax‐Falls	Church	Continuum	of	Care	(CoC)	receives	is	
$8,291,071.		
	

 New	grant	pending‐	The	Continuum	of	Care	Committee	has	selected	Pathway	
Homes’	permanent	supportive	housing	proposal	as	the	community’s	new	bonus	
project	in	the	amount	of	$248,731.	This	project,	once	approved	by	HUD,	will	serve	
11	new	chronically	homeless	individuals.	Pathways	was	also	selected	to	receive	
reallocated	funding	to	expand	1991	Pathways	SHP	by	4	individuals.	The	amount	of	
the	expansion	will	be	$50,008.	HUD	announcement	is	anticipated	April	2018.	
	

 New	Invitation	for	Bid	(IFB)	Submission‐	Pathway	Homes,	submitted	a	response	to	
an	IFB	requesting	vendors	to	provide	Transitional Group Homes (TGH) and Permanent 
Supportive Housing in Chesterfield and Albemarle Counties in Virginia (additional sites 
were offered for vendors to consider, all outside of Northern VA). These homes would be 
targeted for	 individuals	being	discharged	from	state	hospitals	and	presenting	with:	
serious	mental	 health	 diagnoses,	 comorbid	medical	 conditions	 and	 substance	 use	
disorders;	a	history	of	high	risk	behaviors	and	involvement	with	the	legal	system;	and	
treatment‐resistant	psychiatric	symptoms	that	have	jeopardized	previous	attempts	
at	 effective	 functioning	 in	 the	 community.	 	 Pathways'	 recovery‐based,	 person‐
centered	service	provision	will	focus	on	the	development	of	skills	needed	to	support	
everyone	in	successfully	transitioning	from	the	group	home	to	affordable	permanent	
supportive	housing,	or	independent	housing	within	three	to	four	months	of	discharge	
from	 the	 state	 hospital.	 Submission	 of	 this	 bid	was	 requested	 by	 bed	 day	 cost.	 If	
awarded,	 each	proposal	 is	 anticipated	 to	 serve	 between	8‐16	 consumers.	 Bid	was	
submitted	12/22/17	and	award	of	this	bid	is	anticipated	in	1/2018.	
	

 The	Pathway	Homes	Resident	Holiday	Party	was	again	a	success!	The	event	was	held	
on	12/7/2017	at	the	Church	of	Good	Shepherd	located	at	9350	Braddock	Road,	Burke,	
VA.		Residents,	Board	Members	and	staff	brought	in	the	holiday	cheer	and	danced	the	
night	away.	
	

 Staff	holiday	party	was	well	attended	by	staff	and	Board	Members	at	Brion’s	Grille,	
10621	Braddock	Road,	 Fairfax,	VA.	This	 event	 appeared	 to	be	 enjoyed	by	all	with	
great	food,	agency	gifts	and	prizes.	Thanks	to	all	who	participated!			
	

	
	



 

 

PATHWAY HOMES, INC. 
Minutes of the Quarterly Meeting of the 

Board of Directors 
October 2, 2017 

 
 
The annual meeting of the Board of Directors was held on October 2, 2017. A quorum being 
present, the meeting was called to order at 10:18 a.m. by Chairman, Dan Gray.  The following 
individuals were present and participated throughout the meeting: 
 
 
MEMBERS      STAFF 
 
Dan Gray, Chair 
Patrick Chaing, Vice-Chair 
Jon-Michael Rosch, Secretary 
Maiko Ashby 
Jennifer Judelsohn 
Jennifer McGarey (arrived at 10:35 a.m.) 
James Ross 
Sue Zywokarte 

Sylisa Lambert-Woodard, President & CEO 
Brenda Brennan, CFO 
Anna Smith, Director of Development and 

Major Gifts 
Eleanor Vincent, COO 
Lauren Leventhal, Technology & Quality 

Assurance Manager 

    
Kevin VanderNaald, Leadership & Life Coach, was also in attendance and observed the meeting 
in preparation for the Board Retreat immediately to follow. 
 
The following individuals notified the office or other Board Members that they would not be 
present for this meeting: Dara L. Aldridge, Emily Chiang, Angie Lathrop, and Tom Rowe  
 
PRESENTATION 
 
State of the Agency 
Sylisa Lambert-Woodard, EdD, LCSW, LSATP, MAC 
 
Sylisa acknowledged Kevin VanderNaald as the board facilitator donating his entire day to the 
board retreat.  Sylisa asked for a moment of silence for the individuals killed and injured during 
the Las Vegas attacks as well as for those continuing to survive in the flooding and disaster after 
the hurricane in Puerto Rico.  
 
Sylisa provided an overview of the agency for fiscal year 2017. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Dan Gray called for a motion to approve the minutes from July 10, 2017 as presented.  Jim Ross 
made a motion to approve, which was seconded by Sue Zywokarte and approved unanimously. 
 



 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT – Brenda Brennan 
 
The Treasurer’s Report and supporting documentation was distributed prior to the meeting 
(enclosed in the Board minutes book).   The audit committee will meet with the auditors in 
November for the final report.  
 
CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT AND COMMENTS – Dan Gray 
 
Dan announced he met previously in the week with Kevin, and they discussed what the board 
wants to get out of the retreat. He looks forward to a productive afternoon. 
 
PHILANTHROPY COMMITTEE REPORT – Jennifer Judelsohn 
 
In addition to the written Philanthropy Committee Report (enclosed in the Board minutes book), 
the committee noted the following: 

o 5 of the 12 board members have met or exceeded the give/get objective of $1,500 
each 

o Encouraged board to set up fundraising page for the Help the Homeless walk. 
This will be talked about more at the retreat. 

 
BOARD DEVELOPMENT –Patrick Chaing 
 
The Committee Report (enclosed in the Board minutes book); the last meeting focused on the 
board survey results and preparation for the board retreat. 
 
ADVOCACY – Sue Zywokarte 
 
Sue described meeting with the Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board and executives 
related to the loss of the sole source contract.  There was some miscommunication and 
misinformation provided to the consumers during the meeting regarding the reason for the 
contract loss.  Sylisa provided feedback to Tisha Deeghan regarding clarifying the actual reasons 
for the contract loss. 
 
OLD BUSINESS –  
 
The was no old business. 
 
Dan asked to go into Closed Session at 11:40 a.m. The Board reconvened at 12:33 p.m. 
 
NEW BUSINESS –  
 
Officer Election – Dan announced that this will be his last year as Board Chair.  The Board 
Development committee would like input from others about how to select, nominate, and prepare 
future officers.   
 
Dan read the Officer slate for the October 2017 – 2018 term: 



 

 

 
Dan Gray – Chairperson 

Patrick Chaing– Vice-Chair 
Jon-Michael Rosh - Secretary 

Tom Rowe –Treasurer 
 

Dan read the list of Board Members slated to be re-elected for the three-year term of October 
2017 - 2020: 
 

Jennifer Judelsohn 
 
Jim Ross moved to accept the Officer and Member slates as presented.  This was seconded by 
Maiko Ashby and approved unanimously. 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS –  
 
The agenda has a list of announcements and significant dates.  At the Help the Homeless Walk, 
the Board should stay back in order to take photos prior to walking.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, Patrick Chaing made a motion to adjourn the meeting. This was 
seconded by Jim Ross and unanimously approved by the Board.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:37 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  



Page 1 of 1 
 

TREASURER’S REPORT-January 2018 
Brenda Brennan, Chief Financial Officer 
Presented by Kristina McCullough, Controller 
 
The Fiscal Year 2017 Financial and Compliance audits have been completed.  The 
financial statements for: Pathway Homes, Inc., Pathways Living, Inc., Pathway Options, 
Inc., Pathway Visions, Inc., Pathways of Florida, Inc., and Pathways Recovery, Inc., have 
all been received and filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse  
 
Tax Returns for Fiscal Year 2017 are in draft form and being reviewed.  Final returns 
should be completed within the next week.  Extensions were all filed with the Internal 
Revenue Service. 
 
Staff members; Sylisa Lambert-Woodard, Kristina McCullough, Sakin Mire and Brenda 
Brennan and the Board of Director’s audit committee; Tom Rowe, Jim Ross, Emily 
Chiang, Johnny Rosch and Dan Gray, by call-in, met with the audit team from 
CohnReznick on November 10, 2017 for the final audit presentation.  Micki Lin, 
Christopher Griffin, and Managing Partner, Winell Belfonte from CohnReznick, 
presented the scope and details of the Fiscal Year 2017 audits and results.  Tom Rowe, 
will present the Audit Committee summary from this meeting during Committee reports. 
 
The agency’s health, with Kaiser Permanente has been renewed effective January 1, 2018 
with a small .5% premium increases.  The agencies other benefits with Met Life for 
dental insurance and Unum for life insurance was renewed effective January 1, 2018 with 
no premium increases passed to staff.  All staff payroll deductions for benefits will 
remain the same for 2018 as they were in 2017. 
 
The agency has entered into an agreement with Paycom, a Human Capital Management 
Solution, to outsource payroll processing and benefits administration effective December 
1, 2017.  With Paycom, staff can manage their; time sheets, leave requests, and personal 
information directly and on-line, including retention of historical wage and benefit 
information.  Other capabilities including benefits administration for enrollments and 
changes will also be implemented over the next few months in Paycom. Two payrolls 
have successfully been processed in Paycom and all carry forward year-to-date 
information has been validated.  End of year W-2’s will be processed in Paycom.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







January 2, 2018 - Philanthropic Report –2nd Quarter FY18 
October 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 
 

Committee Members: Jennifer Judelsohn, Chair, Patrick Chaing, and Sue Zywokarte 
Staff: Sylisa Lambert-Woodard, Anna Smith 
 
 Financial Contribution Total Received YTD $244,905– FY18 Goal $586,000 
 Campaign Updates:  

o Holiday Wish List: FY18 YTD $30,650 – FY18 Goal $11,000* 
o Help the Homeless: FY18 YTD  $55,677– FY18 Goal $75,000 ** 

 Board Sponsorship Goal: $15,129 – FY18 Goal $20,000 
o Steps to Pathways Breakfast: YTD $19,997– FY18 Goal $60,000** * 
o Other: YTD $15,869 FY18 Goal $40,000 

 Grant Update: YTD $122,250- FY18 Goal $250,000 
 Upcoming Philanthropic Events: 

o February 15, 2018; April 19, 2018; and June 21, 2018 – Steps to Pathways Information Session - 
10 to 11 a.m. – Pathway Homes Offices 

o May 17, 2018 – Steps to Pathways Breakfast – 8:00 to 9:30 a.m. at Stacy Sherwood Community 
Center, 3740 Old Lee Highway, Fairfax 

o June 24, 2018 – Summer of the Arts Artist Reception – 4:00 to 6:00 p.m. - Jewish Community 
Center of Northern Virginia, 8900 Little River Turnpike, Fairfax, VA  22031.  Exhibit open June 
15th through July 11th 

 Call to Action:  The Philanthropic Committee proposes for discussion and motion during the meeting that 
the proceeds of the Help the Homeless Walk be allocated as unrestricted. 

* Holiday Wish List tripled contributions received in previous years!   This $30,000 will be joined with a 
$20,000 Cafritz Foundation Challenge Grant.  First time challenge grant was included in this 
Campaign 

**2017 Help the Homeless Campaign Total $63,507 - $7,830 received in FY17 

*** Current Steps to Pathways Breakfast projection is $60,000 to meet $586,000 would recommend new 
goal of $120,000.  Already have $20,000 in the door from previous year pledges.    

 
 



Month 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

Steps to Pathways Fundraising 
Breakfast

Steps to Pathways Information 
Sessions

Help the Homeless

Board Meetings

Donor Recognition Event

Summer of Arts Reception

Holiday Wish List

Date ‐ TBD. Location Pathways Headquarters ‐ Wine and Cheese Reception recognizing Giving Society Member, Donors >$1,000 per 
year and Breakfast Table Captains.  Board encouraged to attend.

Board meets quarterly the second Monday from 6:30 to 8:30 p.m. ‐ Except October which is held on the First Monday and is Annual 
Meeting; Committee meetings are held on an ad hoc basis; 

Direct Mail and Constant Contact Campaign begins Monday after Thanksgiving ‐ Board Role ‐ Awareness of campaign‐‐no action 
needed.

2018 Calendar

2018 Important Fundraising Dates for the Board
Thursday, May 17, 2018 Breakfast at Sherwood Community Center, 3740 Old Lee Highway, Fairfax 8:00 to 9:30 a.m.  Board Role ‐ 
Serve as Table Captains and invite contacts to breakfast.

Exhibit being held at Jewish Community Center of Northern Virginia, 8900 Little River Turnpike, Fairfax, VA  22031.  June 15th through 
July 11th.  Artist Reception will be held on Sunday, June 24,  2018 from 4 to 6 p.m.  Board encouraged to attend.

Saturday, October 20, 2018 ‐Fairfax City Hall ‐ Board Role:  Secure sponsorships and build walk teams. 

Held the 3rd Thursday of each even‐numbered month (except October) from 10 to 11 a.m. at Pathways.  Board role: Host one 
session per year.  Invite contacts throughout the year interested in learning more about Pathway Homes.  Not fundraising session, 
but a get to know us opportunity.



2017 Board Member Give and Get 

 Individual Breakdown 

Board Member A $12,855 

Board Member B $5,500 

Board Member C $4,826 

Board Member D $4,721 

Board Member E $4,255 

Board Member F $3,770 

Board Member G $2,117 

Board Member H $1,505 

Board Member I $1,500 

Board Member J $1,036 

Board Member K $655 

Board Member L $200 

TOTAL $42,940 



$568,400.00

$795,706.00

$1,114,064.00

$0.00

$200,000.00

$400,000.00

$600,000.00

$800,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,200,000.00

FY18 FY19 FY20

40 Percent Average Growth Rate

Current Projection
$463,939 as of 1/2/2018

Gap ‐ $104,461

The Path to Success





LaurenP
Typewritten Text

LaurenP
Typewritten Text

LaurenP
Typewritten Text

LaurenP
Typewritten Text
DRAFT

LaurenP
Typewritten Text
DRAFT

LaurenP
Typewritten Text
DRAFT










	January 2018 Board Agenda
	Revised Board Addendum -January2018
	October 2017 Board Minutes - Pathway Homes
	Treasurer January 2018
	Financial Statements 11.30.17
	1-2-2018 - Philanthropic Committee Report
	2018 Board Events Calendar
	Board Member Contribution Comparison
	40percentgrowthchart



